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Attractions on the Copernicus Trail

Astronomical observatory in Truszczyny

Astronomical observatory in Kurzetnik

The ruins of the castle of the Chetmno chapter in Kurzetnik
»Kurza Gora” ski resort in Kurzetnik

Brodnicka gate in Nowe Miasto Lubawskie

Former Evangelical Church in Nowe Miasto Lubawskie
Basilica of St. Thomas the Apostle in Nowe Miasto Lubawskie
The canoe trail of the Drweca River

Defensive walls and reconstructed wings of the castle of the
bishops of Chetmno in Lubawa

. Church of St. Anne in Lubawa
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Church of St. John the Baptist in Lubawa

tazienki Lubawskie City Park in Lubawa

Church of the Visitation of the Blessed Virgin Mary in Lipy
Fields of Grunwald with the Museum of the Battle of Grunwald
The Ethnographic Park of the Museum of Folk Architecture
in Olsztynek

Teutonic castle in Olsztynek (rebuilt)

Multimedia Museum of Stalag IB Hohenstein

and the History of Olsztynek in Olsztynek

Castle of the Warmia Chapter in Olsztyn

- Museum of Warmia and Mazury

Upper Gate in Olsztyn

Old Town Hall in Olsztyn

Church of St. James in Olsztyn

Planetarium in Olsztyn

Astronomical observatory in Olsztyn

Ukiel Recreation and Sports Center in Olsztyn

The canoe trail of the Lyna River

Warmian Calvary in Glotowo

Collegiate basilica of the Holy Savior and All Saints

in Dobre Miasto

The Stork Tower in Dobre Miasto

The City Open-Air Museum in Dobre Miasto

Palace of Warmian bishops in Smolajny

The castle of Warmia bishops in Lidzbark Warminski

- the Museum of Warmia

Church of St. Peter and St. Paul in Lidzbark Warminski

High Gate in Lidzbark Warminski

The Orthodox Church of St. Apostles Peter and Paul

in Lidzbark Warminski

Warmian Baths in Lidzbark Warminski

Sanctuary of Our Lady, Queen of Peace

in Stoczek Klasztorny

St. John the Baptist and John the Evangelist in Orneta
Town hall in Orneta

Missionary and Ethnographic Museum in Pieniezno
Church of Saints Peter and Paul the Apostles in Pieniezno
Watsza River Valley nature reserve

Gate tower of the castle of Warmian bishops in Braniewo
Church of St. Catherine in Braniewo

Church of the Holy Cross in Braniewo

Archcathedral of the Assumption of the Blessed Virgin Mary
and St. Andrew the Apostle in Frombork

Bishop's Palace in Frombork - Nicolaus Copernicus Museum
Radziejowski Tower with planetarium in Frombork

The hospital complex of St. Spirit - department on the history
of medicine of the Nicolaus Copernicus Museum in Frombork
Astronomical Park near Frombork

Church of St. James the Apostle in Tolkmicko

Regional Museum in the new Town Hall in Tolkmicko

The imperial palace in Kadyny

Archaeological and Historical Museum in Elblag

St. Nicholas Cathedral in Elblag

Market Gate in Elblag

Elblag Canal - a marina in Elblag

The Church Path in Elblag

Map of the Copernicus Trail

in the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship
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AN INVITATION

FOR A JOURNEY

e route of the Copernicus Trail presented in the guide is not an artificial creation.

It runs exactly in the footsteps of the journey of Nicolaus Copernicus through the

region of the present Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship, and mainly within the

borders of historic Warmia. It was then ruled by the Warmian bishops and the
cathedral chapter. The chapter had three bailiffs in this region (Frombork, Pieniezno and
Olsztyn), therefore belonging to the chapter was connected with numerous administrative
duties, which Nicolaus Copernicus also had to fulfill, as the chapter's capitular in 1510-1543.
Therefore, mainly for these reasons, his life was extremely busy and connected with many @
journeys.
However, before settling in the seat of the chapter, he spent the first years after his studies
(1503-1510) with his uncle tukasz Watzenrode, bishop of Warmia, in Lidzbark Warminski. His
uncle was the most important person not only in Warmia, but in all of Royal Prussia. Warmia
was a part of Royal Prussia. Until the secularization of the Teutonic Order in 1525, Warmia was
surrounded by Teutonic lands, which gave rise to a sense of constant threat. The Order did
not give up its desire for retaliation, since as a result of the Thirteen Years’ War (1454-1466),
Pomerania was returned to Poland. Along with Pomerania, Poland also gained Warmia.
Therefore, the Warmian bishop closely observed the actions of the Teutonic authorities and
as a result he became the closest adviser of the next three Polish kings in these matters.
He took Nicolaus Copernicus with him not only to the regional assemblies he presided
over, but to all places where he was had to go - be it to King Aleksander in Vilnius or on this
occasion also to the Grand Master of the Teutonic Order in Kénigsberg (1506).
Following the Copernicus Trail, we get to know the figure of Nicholas at many different
times of his life. Right after finishing his studies he decided to move to Lidzbark Warmiriski
(1503-1510), in the meantime he stayed in Elblag, then he decided to move to the Warmian
Chapter in Frombork, which was his permanent residence in the years 1510-1543, but also
in the meantime he spent some time in Olsztyn (1516-1521), Pieniezno (1517-1519), Braniewo
(1520) and Tolkmicko (1519). And toward the end of his life — he had some extremely
important stays in Lubawa (1539) and Orneta (1538-1539). Copernicus passed through
Dobre Miasto, Olsztynek and Nowe Miasto Lubawskie many times, but that does not mean
that he did not stop there, even for a meal or to rest, for example when he was going to
Lubawa or even further away - to Torur and Krakdw.
When discussing what is closely related to Copernicus, we are also going to point out
monuments connected with the figure of Copernicus and the period in which he lived. We
are also going to tell you briefly about the history of these places, events and interesting

facts from later times. There is no specific order when it comes to visiting specific locations.
= YOU May decide on your own. Enjoy! /
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o-o-o PRACTICAL TIPS

e guide presents two existing Copernicus Trails: walking and road. The walking
trail is marked with standard red hiking trails signs measuring 9 cm x 15 cm. This
trail is also suitable for bikes, but you may have to walk your bike on some of the
sections. The road (car) trail runs along the roads of the Warminsko-Mazurskie

Voivodeship and is marked with white and brown signs with an astrolabe symbol. This trail
is also accessible to cyclists, but when traveling through it, one should take into account the
heavy traffic, especially on national and regional roads. Each route is marked on both sides,
which allows you to freely overcome each stage according to your plans or preferences.
Both trails are equipped with a distance tracker which can help you plan a trip along the
Copernicus Trail according to your abilities and preferences.

The division of the trail into smaller sections adopted in the guide allows you to become
better-oriented when learning more about the route. The starting and ending points of the
sections are places where both Copernicus Routes meet, the course of which very often
does not coincide with each other. The names of the sites related to the life of the trail
patron, as well as other tourist attractions on the trail, are bolded in the text. The Copernicus
Trail invites you to discover the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship, not only through the
prism of Nicolaus Copernicus but also through the various attractions that can be explored
while visiting the region.

road trail (271 km) (ﬁ
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VOIVODESHIP BORDER -

Voivodeship NOWE MIASTO LUBAWSKIE

border

== ntering the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship, the
| Copernicus Trail for cars runs along DKI15. After

passing Brzozie Lubawskie, the trail leads to
e DOlINA Drwecy, entering the geographical
region of Kurzetnik (3,000 inhabitants). This town,
which had city rights until 1905, is dominated
by a high hill known as Goéra Zamkowa (Castle
Mountain) with the ruins of the castle of the
Chetmno Chapter. At a height of 63 m above the ¥
1km  water surface of Drweca, a fortified castle was
: built in the 14th century to guard the river crossing. 2,4
+ In 1410, in Kurzetnik, the Polish-Lithuanian and Teutonic
armies met for the first time. King Wtadystaw Jagietto, Ser, . o
:+ aware of the danger that the large army could have faced dlory in Trusz<?

»© 0000000000000 0000000 000

while crossing a narrow ford, gave up the idea od crossing Drweca

and took a detour to Malbork. Subsequent Polish-Teutonic wars caused destruction on the

castle hill. Eventually, the Swedish army, during the war called the Swedish Deluge (1655-
Y 1660), led to the ruin of the castle in Kurzetnik. The lower parts of the castle walls, built of
fieldstone, have survived to this day. There is a beautiful view of Kurzetnik from
the top of the hill, Drweca and the somewhat distant Nowe Miasto Lubawskie.
In 2010, a viewpoint and amphitheater were arranged in this place. An additional
attraction of this place is the astronomical observatory.
A similar observatory can be found in the village of Truszczyny (26 km from Nowe Miasto
Lubawskie). The facility in Truszczyny conducts research of objects and events in space
as well as educational and popularizing activities. In a separate building you can see an
exhibition devoted to Nicolaus Copernicus, a collection of meteorites
and a portable miniature of the Solar System.

0-0-&
| n the eastern part of Géra Zamkowa there is an
unusual monument of Nicolaus Copernicus. It is a
representation of planet Earth with a fragment of its
orbit around the Sun. The dates 1473-1973 refer to
the 500th anniversary of the birth of Copernicus,
: at the same time indicating the time of creation of

Nowe Miasto
Lubawskie

this architecturally interesting monument. 2’/3 2
— 3
. ~ o
From the top of Géra Zamkowa you can see Kurza G-« : §
. ;
C]

Goéra (162 m asl) located on the other side of

the road. The ski resort operating on it has seven ski
routes with a total length of 2.5 km. Additionally, a wooden
observation tower measuring over 35 meters is being built there.

It will be possible to get there by a chairlift or a 2 km long footbridge raised above

the treetops.
— /
—_—— ——
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The Way of the Cross leads from the center of Kurzetnik to Géra Zamkowa, climbing up to
the castle walls, which was built in 2010 to celebrate the 600th anniversary of the victory
at Grunwald. The rectangular market square is still the central square of the town, which
reminds of the old urban traditions of Kurzetnik. The Kurzetnik commune borders directly
with Nowe Miasto Lubawskie.

*-o-o NOWE MIASTO LUBAWSKIE

A town on the Drweca River (11,000) that is part of the historic
Chetmno region. Established in 1325 by Otto von
Lauterberg, commander of the Chetmno region. The
town lies on the trail of St. Jakub - Camino Polaco,
is @ member of Cittaslow. In town, the trail
runs along the following streets: Jagielloriska,
Mickiewicza and Grunwaldzka.
The history of Nowe Miasto Lubawskie, as
well as the entire Chetmno region, is different
than that of neighboring Masuria or Warmia.
After the Teutonic period, like Warmia, in the
years 1466-1772 the Chetmno region belonged
to Poland. Other important Polish periods are
5 associated with the Duchy of Warsaw (1807-1815)
Qk\oy\ and the Second Polish Republic (1919-1939). The
historical legacy can be seen in the town’s buildings. It is
visible that the architectural models are more Polish than Prussian.
Entering the town from the Kurzetnik village's side, we pass the town stadium, where the
team ,Drweca” playes matches. It is the oldest sports club in the voivodeship, founded in
1919.The old town has two 14th-century Gothic entrance gates: Brodnicka and Lubawska.
When entering the Nowe Miasto market square, it is impossible not to notice the
Evangelical church standing in its center. It was built in 1908-1912, however after World
War Il it ceased to be used by the faithful. It was rebuilt and nowadays it is a cinema called
Harmonia, which served the people of Nowe Miasto Lubawskie for many years. After the
revitalization of the building, the Tourist Information and Culture Promotion Center will
operate in it. It will include, among others, a museum exhibition, a screening room and an
entertainment hall. The most representative frontage of the Nowe Miasto market square
is the southern frontage, with the magnificent Town Hall
building at the very beginning of the frontage. It was
erected in 1776-1777. For many years, it was the
seat of poviat authorities, however now they -
operate in neighboring buildings. The frontage >
ends with a tenement house erected in 1816-
1819 by Gottlieb Keller, which is considered
to be the most beautiful tenement house at
the market square. The history of the press of
Nowe Miasto is connected with this building
— in this building they printed ,Neumarker
Zeitung’, and in the interwar period the
newspaper,Drweca”
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The greatest monument of the town is located along one
of the side streets. It is the Gothic Collegiate Basilica
of St. Thomas, which because of its beauty and
richness measures up to the largest temples of
Warmia. The body of the building of the church
was completed at the beginning of the 15th
century. The dimensions of the church are 54
by 19 m, the church tower rises to a height of 40
m. The interior of the basilica is characterized

as the side naves. On its walls there are paintings % ;
from both the Middle Ages and the 17th century. ‘i’pf
Paintings of Christ, Apostles, St. John the Baptist and % )
the pre.sentann of ,Good and Bad Prayer”. The scene OStfe P —
of the siege of the town walls by the Swedes in 1628 refers Nowe Miasto
directly to the history of Nowe Miasto. The presentation of the
Mother of God spreading her mantle over the city which is being threatened by an enemy,
is very meaningful.
The church organ is decorated with a screen from 1610, and after reconstruction it still
has a pneumatic treatment. The church’s interior is mainly associated with priest Jan
Ewertowski (1689-1740), who himself founded many altars in the basilica. The triumphal
gate opening the presbytery looks the most spectacular. Thanks to the Dziatyriski family,
who had power over the Bratian starosty, the temple received magnificent Baroque altars,
and the Dziatyriski Chapel was added to it. Staroste Pawet Jan Dziatyriski was the greatest
patron of the church in Nowe Miasto. His funeral banner made of red silk decorated the
nave of the church for many years. The seven-meter banner after conservation is currently
in the the Diocesan Museum in Torun.
A valuable monument from the Middle Ages is located in the chapel near the tower. A 2.5
x 1.4 m brass tombstone is embedded in one of the chapel walls. It is dedicated to Kunon
von Liebenstein, Teutonic vogt of Bratian, who died in 1392. The figure of the deceased who
tramples a lion and is assisted by dogs is surrounded by flying angels with coats of arms in
their hands. Around the tombstone there is a a gothic minuscule inscription, separated in
the corners by medallions with the symbols of four evangelists. The tombstone of Kunon
von Liebenstein is unique, only three metal tombstones from that period have survived to
this day. The church also plays the role of the Sanctuary
of Our Lady of £ 3ki. In the main altar there is a figure
of Mary, transferred from the monastery burned
in the 19th century in taki Bratiariskie. The
Church of St. Thomas was raised in 1971 by
= Pope Paul VI to the rank of a minor basilica.
. = Soon, the city's inhabitants and tourists
| -Eé will be able to enjoy the revitalized Rose
— Garden - an attractive area for recreation
and relaxation in the former moat
surrounding the medieval defensive walls.
As part of the revitalization, there will be,
among others, walking paths, a fountain, a
stage and an auditorium housing 200 seats.

: N
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w before World War 1.

NOWE MIASTO LUBAWSKIE -

LU BAWA Nowe Miasto

Lubawskie

e trail coincides with DK15. Leaving
Nowe Miasto Lubawskie, on the right we
pass the ruins of the monastery in tgki
Bratianski. In 1624, Pawet Dziatyriski
brought the Franciscans to taki Bratiarskie.
They built a monastery there, and worshiped
the figurine of Our Lady of taki in the local
church. After the coronation of the figurine
in 1752, the pilgrimage movement to taki
intensified. The monastery in taki — solemnly
and exaggeratedly - was called Prussian
Czestochowa. Despite the high religious
significance, in 1875 German authorities ceased
"W this practice. On the night of May 5-6, 1882, the
monastery buildings burned down after a lightning
strike. Despite attempts made in the interwar period, the
church and monastery were not rebuilt. The figurine of Our Lady of t3aki is now stored
in the basilica in Nowe Miasto. Once a year, during the church fair, on September 8, the
figurine is brought back to the ruins of the monastery for a special worship service. An
unusual, formal procession takes place on boats, the figurine drifts to tgki Bratanskie on
the tides of Drweca.
The next town on the trail is Bratian (1,600). By the road there is the former railway station
of the line from ltawa to Brodnica, closed down in 2000. The station built of red brick is an
example of a characteristic railway building from the turn of the 19th and 20th centuries.
Only fragments of the outer walls of the Teutonic Castle in Bratian remained, built at the
mouth of the Wel River where it flows into Drweca. The castle played a significant role before
the Battle of Grunwald - within its walls the last Teutonic war council took place. A reminder
of this event is the annual staging of the Teutonic army going to the Fields of Grunwald.
After the dissolution of the Teutonic Order in Prussia, the castle lost
its significance. It was demolished in the 19th century.
Going in the direction toward Lubawa, on the right
side of the road we pass a small monument
dedicated to the murder in the Bratiarski
forest. On October 15, 1939, Selbstschutz
(German for ,self-protection”), paramilitary
organization was formed for representatives
of the German national minority in the Second
Polish Republic, shot 150 people in the above
mentioned forest. It was the largest execution %
of prisoners in this area. The monument is also ’mf/ _
a testimony that not all the lands included in the %
Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship belonged to

y. S
S

%\5 Lubawa

6 Y T —
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Lovers of the region’s antiquity should visit Samptawa. The village has one of the preserved
Prussian hill forts, belonging to the type of conical hill forts. It is sometimes identified
with the seat of Szymon of Samptawa, one of the leaders of the Prussian Confederation
against the Teutonic Order in 1454, but there is no clear historical evidence confirming
this theory. The inhabitants call the hill fort the Hill of St. John.

LUBAWA -0-0

A town (10,000), once owned by the bishops of Chetmno is
located on the the very end of the land belonging to
Chetmno. It is located on the Lubawa Hump in the
Sandela River valley. It is a member of Cittaslow.
In the town, the trail runs along the streets:
Wyzwolenia, Gdariska and Kupnera.
When entering the town, turning at the
roundabout into Gdanska Street, it is worth
paying attention to a memorial stone dedicated
to the interned insurrectionists of November,
subordinate officers of General Maciej Rybirski, :
who died of cholera in Lubawa in 1831. An epidemic 5’6‘,
of this disease, brought to West Prussia and East Prussia,
was present in this region for the next 35 years, causing
death of many inhabitants of these areas.
Nearby thereis the coat of arms of Lubawa which welcomes guests. It depicts the missionary
bishop of Prussia Christian, who conducted a Christianization action among the Prussians
since 1215.The date (1216) next to the coat of arms refers to the first historical record of the
term,Lubawa region”. Lubawa itself belonged to the bishops of Chetmno since 1257. It has
had city rights since the time of Bishop Herman, who was in office in the years 1303-1311.
Only fragments of the perimeter walls and a round corner tower remained from the
castle of the bishops of Chetmno. It was built in the first
“4,,  half of the 14th century, it had a turbulent history.
Q”) It has been destroyed many times in its history.
In 1330 the castle had to face the Lithuanian
invasion, then it was destroyed by fire in 1545.
In the 17th century the castle was wonderfully
rebuilt thanks to the efforts of bishops Jan
Zadzik and Jan Lipski. The reconstruction
gave the fortalice the features of a Baroque
residence. After the First Partition of Poland
and the land of Chetmno being taken away by
Prussia, bishops lost a significant part of their
income. After the death of bishop Andrzej Ignacy
Baier in 1785, the best times of the Lublin castle
ended. His successor Karol von Hohenzollern began partial
demolition of the castle. The rest of the damage was done by: a lightning strike in 1811,
a fire of the castle in 1815 and a decree regarding demolition from 1826.
Inthe 21st century, work regarding the protection of the remaining fragments of the castle
walls has begun. An educational path was created around the remaining castle walls,

describing the history of the castle based on the history background of the city andfla.nd/
T
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of Lubawa. The foundations and courtyard of the castle
have been the subject of archaeological exploration
for many years. The revitalization completed in
2020 resulted in the reconstruction of two
castle wings, now in their modern edition.
A Center for Social Activity was founded in
the space. Non-governmental organizations,
a knight's brotherhood, a tourist information
point, and a multimedia museum have also
established their headquarters here.

0-0-0
he castle of Lubawa hosted Nicolaus
Copernicus, when he visited his friend,

then Bishop of Chetmno, Tiedemann Giese. In

the summer of 1539, when Copernicus arrived in

the castle with his guest, professor of mathematics Jerzy
Joachim Retyk. From that time Lubawa became part of the history of astronomy. During :
this stay, Giese and Retyk persuaded Copernicus to publish his work,On Revolutions”.
In the garden square by the castle you can find an information board with the image of
Nicolaus Copernicus and a description of these events.
L 4

The Lubawa market square, after the last restoration, is a real historical center of the
town, but the most interesting monuments are the churches of Lubawa. Gothic church
of St. Anne, built in the 14th century, is to this day the most important temple in
Lubawa. The entrance to the tower has been made in an interesting way - one enters
the church from the gateway. The indoor interior, covered with a barrel vault, is filled
with altars from the Baroque period. From the southern side, the Morteski Chapel, built
in 1581, adjoins the church. The Morteski family belonged to the most powerful families

@ of the land of Chetmno, equally important as the Dziatyriski family. The Chetmno and
Pomeranian voivods, members of the parliament, and even candidates for altars came
from this family. The Servant of God Mother Magdalena Morteska (1554-1631) lost
her right eye as a child. As an abbess of the Benedictine monastery in Chetmno, she
reformed the religious rule, including education of girls in the tasks of the Order. The
beatification process of abbess has been in progress since 2016.
The branch of the Lubawa parish church is the wooden church of St. Barbara. It was built
in the suburbs in 1770-1779 and is located in the place of the
former hospital of St. George. It belongs to a group of +
historic wooden churches of the land of Lubawa,
built between the 16th and 18th centuries.
It is worth going a few hundred meters further
north to reach the memorial stone of the
Covert Penal Colony for Youth. It was officially
opened in 1941. During its existence about
1,000 children, both boys and girls, had been
in the camp. These children had to work in

< )
Ne ; : .
€in Lubawa, PN

industrial plants and agricultural estates. Their G\ : @A@

daily meal was 200 grams of dark bread, a portion C’?;j &

of watery soup and a cup of coffee brewed from O~ **&@

acorns. The stone is next to the court building, which ‘é)% S
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sentenced juveniles, causing them to stay in the camp.
The third and probably the most interesting church
is located on the other side of the old town, near
the ruins of the castle. The Church of St. John the
Baptist belongs to Renaissance temples, rare in
the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship. It was
built in the first years of the 17th century by
Polish Franciscans, sometimes also known as A
Bernardines. Apart from the valuable liturgical Dc; W
equipment, the church impresses with its & S
magnificent coffered ceiling. The ceiling above O/:p :
the presbytery was made by Seweryn Ditlof from (/o ;
Lubawa in 1611. Religious scenes with the participation the s >
of Franciscans were depicted in the oval fields on the starry gdpyst in Lba\Na' o°
night sky. The entire wooden ceiling over the nave measuring
222 m x 11.8 m is covered with 196 coffers. Among the paintings in the coffers we can
find scenes from the life of Jesus Christ and the Mother of God, from the Old and New
Testaments and the depictions of apostles and evangelists. The free-standing sanchions
are a relic of the Evangelical times of the temple, because in 1821 the church was given
away to the faithful of this rite.
At first glance, the inconspicuous post-conciliar altar, decorated with the image of the
Eucharistic lamb, and the adjacent ambo have an extraordinary, historical significance.
Both of these them are a remnant of the papal mass, celebrated on June 6, 1991 by
St. John Paul Il in Olsztyn. In accordance with the will of the Pope, who asked that the
altars he used during his numerous pilgrimages perform useful functions, these two
elements returned to where they were made, i.e. to Lubawa.
Between the Church of St. Jan and the castle stands there
is a building of the Municipal Public Library of Teofil
Ruczynski. In the library there is a facsimile of the
only copy of the Gutenberg Bible in Poland. It
was printed in the years 1452-1455 in the Mainz
printing house of master Jan. It is one of the
most valuable monuments of printing arts in the
world. The original Bible was the property of the
Franciscans of Lubawa, and was given to them by
S o the Bishop of Chetmno, Mikotaj Chrapicki (1496-
e = & 1507). With the transfer of the diocese capital from
/”705 _‘\,00 Chetmza to Pelplin, the Lubawa copy was taken to
¢ Un; ’ (aﬂ\o Pelplin, where today it is exhibited at the local Diocesan
Cipal puplic \ Museum.
Leaving the town, we reach Lipy, where the Sanctuary of Our Lady of Lipy is located.
The The Marian cult in this place was mentioned as early as in the 15th century. The
object of worship is the figurine of the Mother of God, kept in the Lubawa parish church.
During the church fair, it is transferred in a formal procession to the church in Lipy.
0-0-&
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his place is associated with the legend of the construction of the Lubawa waterworks
by Nicolaus Copernicus. During a visit to the Bishop of Chetmno, he was to solve the
problem of the lack of water in town by designing waterworks, which brought water from
the spring in Lipy. That's the legend, because there is no historical evidence to confirm it.
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Lubawa

e trail on the stretch of road between Lubawa and Olsztynek leads through
DWS537 and S7. Passing through Ztotowo, it is worth visiting the center of the
village for a moment to see one of the temples referred to as ,pearls of wooden
architecture of the land of Lubawa’ The wooden baroque Church of St. Barbara ~ 45km

was built in 1725. .

Reaching the next village, we enter the Masuria region. .

Napromek and neighboring Lubstynek are two of

the three villages granted to Poland as a result of

a plebiscite in Warmia, Masuria and Powisle in

1920. In the forest to the east, when leaving .

Napromek, there is the Animal

Rehabilitation Center run by the

Olsztynek Forest District. The center can be

visited to see animals that, after providing

veterinary assistance, gain strength to return

" @ totheir natural habitat.

,\é‘\ The trail leads to the Dylewo Hills Landscape
i \\% Park. Established in 1994 in an area of over 71 km?,
P \)\]\\“ it protects the rich flora and fauna, as well as historical
Cape Park, phO‘O‘ and cultural values of the highest situated area in Masuria,
along with its culmination on Dylewska Gora (Dywelska Hill)

@ (312 m above sea level). The church in Marwatd is associated with the figure of Krzysztof

Olsztynek

Celestyn Mrongowiusz, whose father was a local pastor. The future linguist and Polish
activist spent a significant part of his childhood in this village.

Through Tutodziad and Marcinkowo we reach Frygnowo. An interesting attraction in
this village was the monument, erected in 1927, commemorating the command post of
Marshal Paul von Hindenburg during the Battle of Tannenberg in August 1914. During the
preparations for the celebration of the 550th anniversary of the Battle of Grunwald in 1960,
the inscription was removed, the boulder was dismantled
and transported to Rychnowo. Today it serves as a
guideboard, informing about the exit from the main
road towards the Fields of Grunwald.

In Stebark, going down the roundabout towards
the place of the greatest battle of medieval
Europe, we pass the Church of the Holy Trinity.

sy )

The construction of the current temple was %r Z

completed in 1681. In the pervious one, the B o £

body of the Grand Master Ulrich von Jungingen, 9@' - §
who waskilled on July 15, 1410 on the fields next 7 . TR
% S

to the village, was placed on the catafalque in the
temple. The Museum of the Battle of Grunwald is
located at the site of the historic battle.
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Next the parking lot there is a technical building with a ticket
and souvenir sales point and a gastronomic corner. At the
entrance to the Monument Hill there are the remains
of the Grunwald monument, unveiled in 1910 in
Krakéw. Granite blocks destroyed in 1939, in 1983
they were transported to the Fields of Grunwald.
The Grunwald Victory Monument erected on
top of the hill i san an obelisk depicting two
heads of knights, eleven masts connected by «.
banners of Polish and Lithuanian troops and an ©
amphitheater with the layout of the battle. In the g%_
rooms under the amphitheater there is a museum g™
exhibition. More exhibition halls will be made available &’f/@ \
for over 1,700 m? of space in the newly built pavilion, open n the Grun
all year round. It will also house research laboratories, a library,

a conference room and a museum warehouse, as well as a hall for knights’ battles. The
expositions in Grunwald bring us closer to the Middle Ages, in particular the period of

the Great War with the Teutonic Order (1409-1411), with its culminating point, the Battle

of Grunwald. The surroundings of the Monument Hill are complemented by: a stone
commemorating the place of death of the Grand Master, the ruins of the battle chapel

erected by the Teutonic Knights and Jagietto Mound erected by scouts. In 2010, the Fields

of Grunwald were recognized by the President of Poland as a monument of history. @
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Further on, the trail leads through Zybuttowo to Mielno. This village has the first
petanque in the region. In this field for playing boules, located next the beach by Lake
Mielno, players can use up to 28 tracks. The lake is under nature protection as a protected
landscape area. After passing Debowa Géra and Pawtowo we reach the expressway S7,
from where we have only a few kilometers to Olsztynek.

OLSZTYNEK e

It is a Masurian town (7,600) located by the
Jemiotdwka River in the southern part of the
Olsztyn Lakeland. It was granted city rights in
1359 by the Grand Master Winrych von Kniprode.
Currently Olsztynek belongs to Cittaslow. In the
? city, the trail runs along Gdariska, Olsztyriska and
Y% & Mrongowiusza streets. Olsztynek is crossed by a
S railway line connecting Dziatdowo with Olsztyn.
S The town was founded by the Teutonic Knights on
the very edge of today’s Masuria, a few kilometers
south of the borders of Warmia. It lies at the intersection
k‘photo;arch'\\/es ™ of main road routes - here travelers going from Gdarisk
to Warsaw can exit the main road and go to Olsztyn, Lidzbark

Warminski and the border crossing with Russia in Bezledy.
When exiting the expressway S7 and driving towards the town of Olsztynek, we cross the area
of the former Stalag IB Hohenstein prisoner-of-war camp in Krélikowo. In 1939, a barrack
town was established in this place — which was supposed to be for tourists — howerver,
with the outbreak of World War Il it was transformed into a prisoner-of-war camp. Several

hundred thousand Polish, Soviet, Italian, French and Belgian prisoners had spetre/
N —
—_—— ——
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time in this place. 55 thousand of them died mainly from
exhaustion. Polish and Soviet soldiers are still lying in

S@ o the war cemetery in Sudwa, located 2 km north of
S 7/;0 the former camp. Camp memorabilia can be seen
I3 © in the Multimedia Stalag IB Hohenstein and
Q- V i . .
= Z History of Olsztynek Museum in Olsztynek,
r% % opened in 2014, which operates in the attic of
5 > the Olsztynek Town Hall.
] . . . . .
o, £ Having in mind tourists who were coming
% 5 to the Hindenburg Mausoleum for the 25th
) gf anniversary of the celebration of the Battle of
@,& %@ Tannenberg, which took place in this area at
% Q" the end of August 1914, the barrack town was

e, e é{\-\o built. The monumental spatial layout comprised
7 ang T o6 dight huge brick ith ing wall
the History of 0 of eig t huge brick towers, wit 'connectlrjg walls
surrounding the octagonal courtyard in the middle of

which the Tomb of the Unknown Soldier was arranged. This monument dedicated to fallen
soldiers after the funeral of the marshal and president of Germany Paul von Hindenburg in
1934 was changed into his mausoleum. After World War Il, the monument was completely
demolished, in its place there is a huge hole in the ground, and its existence is reminded
only by an information board, located at the place of former entry to the mausoleum.
The remains of the monument can be seen in front of the Olsztyn Town Hall. A stone lion,
with his left paw on a cannonball, greeted visitors of the mausoleum that once entered
the area. During the demolition of the monument he disappeared and nowadays the
stone lion is in Ketrzyn. The lion returned to Olsztynek in 1993 and now welcomes those
entering the Town Hall, erected in 1923, which is a real decoration of the Market Square
in Olsztynek, which proudly bears the name of the Square of St. Peter. In the north-west
corner of the Market Square stands the former Protestant Church, which today functions

@ as an Exhibition Hall. Together with the neighboring, inconspicuous, small house, squeezed
into a stone town wall, it forms part of the Museum of Folk Architecture. The Ethnographic
Park of the Museum of Folk Architecture is located in the northern part of Olsztynek.
This small house is a former pastor, built in 1684, today called the House of Mrongowiusz.
The mostfamous man born in Olsztynek, Krzysztof Celestyn Mrongowiusz, was born on July
19, 1764. He spent his adult life in Gdansk, where, in addition to performing the religious
service of a pastor, he conducted numerous linguistic studies, developed textbooks and
Polish-German dictionaries. He was strongly involved in the A
issue of teaching in the Polish language in the region }‘
of Prussia, openly opposing the Germanization
introduced at that time. He was a member of
the Polish Society of Sciences in Warsaw, and

at the end of his life he was invited by Adam % %
Mickiewicz to join the Historical and Literary gi 3 =
Society in Paris. He lived a long life. He died in 3 b =
Gdansk in 1855 at the age of 90. In Olsztynek, (3/\ N S
in his home, there is an exhibition of his works & % o

o
and historical memorabilia associated with this %
extraordinary scientist. The bust of Mrongowiusz, @

o Q

unveiled in 2000, is located near the Exhibition Hall. ’7@//.7 SR > o

From there, there is only a few steps to the Teutonic Castle. @ BT
\ , .

_
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It defended the access to the town from the north side.
After the liquidation of the Teutonic Order in Prussia
in the 16th century, the castle lost its significance,
and at the end of the 18th century its demolition
began. Luckily, in the vyears 1847-1849 it
was adapted for school, thanks to which it
survived to our times. In the 19th century, two
important people were educated in this scool.
For fourteen years, the school's headmaster =
was Max Toeppen, an excellent historian and “’é
S,
A
)

expert in the region of Masuria. His authorship
,Historia Mazur. Przyczynek do dziejéw krainy
i kultury pruskiej” (eng. ,History of Masuria. A L‘@/'
contribution to the history of the Prussian land and /OO/ J
culture”) is an excellent compendium of knowledge &80’/7@/(
about both Masuria as a region and about its inhabitants. ’
The graduate of the Olsztyn junior high school was Emil Adolf
von Behring, Nobel Prize winner in the field of physiology and medicine. He was born in the
village of tawice near ltawa. He was growing up in Olsztynek, and was educated in the former
castle walls. He received the Nobel Prize in 1901 for his work on anti-diphtheria serum, which
was used to develop a vaccine against this disease.
In 2020, the inhabitants of Olsztynek and tourists have been granted access to the 1906
revitalized water tower with a height of 34 meters. From its observation deck, accessible
by a lift, once can admire the panorama of the city and the surrounding area. There is also
a climbing wall and a conference room in the tower, where youth meetings and cultural
events are organized.
Going towards Olsztyn, we pass the Glassworks of Artistic Glass in Olsztynek. This small
manufactory enjoys having visitors. In this place you can see a metallurgist making glass
figurines. Unique glass souvenirs from Olsztynek are available in the manufactorer’s shop.
Being in this town you can not miss the biggest tourist attraction, which is undoubtedly the
Museum of Folk Architecture - Ethnographic Park. The open-air museum was moved to
Olsztynek in 1938-1942 from Kdnigsberg. On the area of approx. 90 ha, monuments of rural
architecture from the regions of Warmia, Masuria, Powisle, Sambia and Lithuania Minor
are located. Twelve of them have a royal origin, the
others are post-war additions to the collection,
which is constantly growing. In the open-
air museum, in addition to complete
¢, homesteads from individual regions, you
{3 can also see buildings jointly used by
=

© the villagers, such as a church, school,
= mill or tavern. Most of the buildings
= have been moved from their original
location, a dozen or so objects are
faithful copies of the historic buildings
that still remain in the landscape of

that the museum also conducts scientific
ov activities, publishing numerous publications

e - ~(\
m OF Folk Arch'\tecw‘e and,Scientific Notebooks”. /

—_—— ——
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Olsztynek

is part of the trail leads along the S51
expressway. Just after leaving Olsztynek,
we pass a village with an intriguing name
Ameryka (eng. America). The village owes ~ 26,4km
it to a certain Warmian, who in 1917 purchased
the area for money earned in the United States.
Today, Ameryka is known for the Voivodeship
Rehabilitation Hospital for Children. The medical
institution operated in this place even before the
village got the name Ameryka.
Leaving the village, the trail crosses Olsztyn
Pasteka, thus entering the area of historic Warmia.
@ The river, which is almost 200 km long, is narrow
P and shallow at this point because it is just starting
here. Pasteka is an extraordinary river, there are no towns

N\b
or cities that are located by this river except for Braniewo,
located near its mouth to the Vistula Lagoon. This unusual situation is the result of medieval
border agreements within the Teutonic state. During the separation of the domain of the
Bishop of Warmia and monastic lands, both sides established the western border of the
Warmian dominion precisely on this river. In the years 1466-1772 Pasteka was a border river
between Poland and the State of the Teutonic Order, and then the Duchy of Prussia. Due
to the tense Polish-Teutonic relations, hardly anyone wanted to settle on the borderland
threatened by invasions. Because of this, today there are only small villages by Pasteka. Due
to these historical conditions, Pasteka and the areas around it currently constitute the Beaver
Sanctuary on the Pasteka River (it was created in 1970). It covers an area of almost 4,240 ha,
which makes it the largest nature reserve in the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship.
0-0-&

fter crossing the historical border of Warmia, we enter

the area of the former chapter headquarters
of Olsztyn, which was the work area of Nicolaus
Copernicus. In GryZliny, in the winter of 1517, the
capitulary-administrator settled the peasant _
Jan on three fields, which were once settled QF'BJ
by a person named Asman, however he had § i

excaped. A year and a half later, Copernicus ::Q
: dealt with a similar case in Gryzliny with the ?
3 fields left by Cranzl, which he granted to
Stanistaw. For the third time in 1519, he resolved
the inheritance of Brosius Broch in the village. The P
three settlements in Gryzliny make this village, whichis  * 95, 55 s
located on the border of Warmia, come in first place among 9 River"nature |
those visited by Copernicus on business.

\ ¢ 4
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Near the village there is a field airport, built for the needs of
the Luftwaffe in 1937-1938. There is also a train station
in GryZliny.

We reach Lake Wulpinskie by going through the
small Miodéwko and the much larger Stawiguda
(where the railway station also operates). This body
of water (with an area of 10.5 km?) belongs to the
largest lakes of Warmia. On its eastern shore lies
Dorotowo. This village was once famous for its
restaurant on the island of Herta. It was the aim of
Sunday expeditions of the inhabitants of Olsztyn.
People came to the railway station in Gagtawki, from 4%
there they took carriages to Dorotowo to finally take O/D/ v

the ferry to the island. After the Second World War, no Kie Lake, photoi\)\\‘\\N
investor was found and the gastronomic traditions of Herty have

gone down in history. On the northern edge of the village there is a nicely maintained
Tannenberg Cemetery. 148 German soldiers and 87 Russian soldiers who were killed in the
area in August 1914 are burried here.

t 0-0-&
omaszkowo lies next to Dorotowo, and is also located on the shore of Lake Wulpiriskie.
There is an information board at the bus stop informing about the settlement

operation carried out by Mikotaj Kopernik in 1518.

4

L)
Next to the village runs the bypass of Olsztyn - hence it is close to this Warmian city strongly
associated with the patron of the trail.

OLSZTYN *-0-o

Olsztyn is the region’s largest city (175,000) and the
capital of the Warminsko-Mazurskie Voivodeship.
Located in the Olsztyn Lake District, by the tyna
River, surrounded by two forest complexes:
the City Forest and the Napiwodzko-
Ramucka Forest, it has several lakes within its
administrative boundaries. It is a junction of
railway lines currently arriving from six directions.
W & The city lies on the trail of St. James and is the seat
,0\5\ of the Federation of Copernicus Cities. The trail to
‘\\\@\ the center of Olsztyn runs along Warszawska Avenue,
O and then along Sliwy and Szrajbera streets.

Olsztyn was founded by the Warmian Chapter and obtained
city rights on October 31, 1353. For many centuries it was a small town, lost among the
forests and lakes of southern Warmia. The intensive development of the city began in the
1870s with the arrival of the railway in Olsztyn, and in the next decade - the location of
a military garrison, which changed the appearance of the stronghold by the tyna River
forever. The location of the large railway junction caused an influx of people to Olsztyn,
the army, by building twelve barracks complexes, became a real city-forming factor. The
authorities of Olsztyn also focused on the development of health protection. In the 19th

century, a modern city hospital and psychiatric hospital were built, and at the bﬂn.ing/
N —
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of the 20th century, an anti-tuberculosis sanatorium joined
these facilities. During the long-term rule of the
mayor Oskar Belian (1877-1908), the number of
the city’s population increased fivefold, Olsztyn

= rr:“% enriched with gas network, sewage system,
I3 ’Cg water supply, electricity network, in 1907
é’ 7 ; public transport started in the form of trams.
N § The period of rapid development of the city
?3 S brought Olsztyn to the second place in East
2. Prussia, just after the capital Konigsberg.

S

O
\QS Despite the damage done by the Red Army in
Q' 1945, many valuable architectural monuments

< /r;; 7\ .-:-,:‘._.‘.j;":‘- ‘\4],&(\
©in the cloister & , o — o-o-o
he most important building in the city is the castle of
the Warmian Chapter, erected in the bend of the tyna
River. It was in this castle that in the years 1516-1519 and 1520-1521 Nicolaus Copernicus
lived and worked. Today, the chapter stronghold is the seat of the Museum of Warmia
and Masuria. In the representative halls called Copernicus, there is a permanent exhibition
devoted to the Copernicus period of Olsztyn, which is relatively unknown and definitely
worth emphasizing.

: Itis in the cloister of the Olsztyn castle that you can see the astronomical table of Nicolaus :
Copernicus, which he used to determine the moment of the spring equinox, and as a
consequence contributed to the reform of the calendar. On the preserved fragments of
the plaster red lines mapped the path of sunlight on particular days of the year, which
Copernicus selected for observation. In 1582, Pope Gregory XllI, using, among others
Copernicus calculations, introduced a new calendar, called Gregorian, widely applicable
@ worldwide. This table is the only observation instrument preserved to our time made and
used by Nicolaus Copernicus.

-®

L
At the exhibition in Copernicus’ halls you can see a monetary treaty in which Copernicus
noticed the basic law of economics - good money is being forced out of the market by
low valued money. The currency reform proposed by Copernicus, in 1528, contributed to
the introduction of a new unit of account, which was the
Polish zloty. You can also see a letter from Copernicus
to King Zygmunt Stary regarding the Teutonic
threat during the war in 1519-1521. In January
1521, Copernicus managed a successful
defense of the city against mercenary
religious units. In addition, he performed
ordinary administrative work outside the
castle walls, visiting Warmian villages.
After visiting the castle, it is also worth
visiting its immediate surroundings. From
the west side, in the castle boroughs park, %5
there is the oldest monument of Nicolaus ©
Copernicus, carved in 1914 by Johaness Goetz

\frc;nﬁrlin. According to reports, the donor of
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funds for making the bust was Emperor Wilhelm Il himself.
Much younger, because from the year 2003, is the
Copernicus Bench opens the way from the city to
the castle. Since its setting, this work by Urszula
Szmyt from Olsztyn has become a favorite place
for taking photos.
Passing by the 19th century neo-Gothic %
Evangelical church, we reach the Old Town %
Market Square. In the center of the rectangular %
square stands the building of the Old Town ‘o
Hall. Its southern side, dating from the beginning
of the 16th century, has impressive Gothic facade
decorations. The former main entrance is particularly
beautifully decorated, where you can admire the rare “ by the Olsztyn @3‘\
donkey back arch motif. The city council left the town hall walls
in 1915, moving to its new headquarters. Today, the interior of the Town Hall is filled with
the collection of the Provincial Public Library.
At one of the side streets of the city, there is the Church of St. James. Once an ordinary
parish church, today it has the rank of a Warmian co-cathedral on a par with the
archcathedral basilica in Frombork. The Gothic hall interior of the temple is covered
with rib and diamond vaults. The temple is like a real time capsule, inside you can find
monuments from almost every period of the city’s existence. The most important are
certainly: the reliquary of St. Wojciech, introduced to the temple in 1980, a monumental
17th century crucifix, the work of Isaac Riga of Kénigsberg, a 16th century deer head
candlestick, hung up in one of the chapels near the tower, and a Gothic wall tabernacle
with a Renaissance representation of the martyred Christ, opened only during Lent in the
Catholic Church. During summer, on Sunday evenings, two organ fronts are used during
Organ Concerts in Olsztyn, organized since 1979. The patron of the concerts is Feliks
Nowowiejski, who lived in Olsztyn at the end of the 19th century, who in the years 1898-
1900 served as an organist in this church. In front of the building, it is worth stopping for
a moment at the Papal Station, commemorating the stay of St. John Paul Il in Olsztyn on
the 5th and 6th of June 1991. On the glass walls of the Papal Station, you can not only see
original photos from the Pope’s visit to the Olsztyn co-cathedral, but you can also read a
fragment of a homily delivered during the meeting with the faithful in this temple. Since
2019, the church’s facade is also decorated with richly carved
doors leading to the Crypt of Warmian Archbishops.
In the three neighboring historic tenements
adjacent to the co-cathedral, the Museum of
the Archdiocese of Warmia opened its doors
in 2018. The most valuable art monuments -
not only sacred - are exhibited on three levels,
collected by the archdiocese from the 13th to
the 21st century. Before we leave the Old Town,
we will also visit the Fish Market. There you
Fg can easily find the figure of the patron of the
W city - St. James the Elder, Apostle. Established in
v@@ 2004, it is directly adjacent to the House of ,Gazeta
\)\@ Olsztynska”. The original newspaper editorial and

u»“'

Mo s s
S in Olsztyn, phO‘O printing house building was demolished by the Germans
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. in November 1939. It was reconstructed in 1989-1992.
An exhibition devoted to ,Gazeta Olsztyriska” was
organized in the attic during the period of 1886-
1939, when it was published continuously as a
Polish newspaper in German Olsztyn. On the
first floor there is an exhibition ,Sketches to
the history of the city”. Everyone coming to
Olsztyn, interested in the history of the city,
should visit this place.
The exit from the Old Town northwards
opens the Upper Gate, commonly called
the High Gate by residents of Olsztyn. After
_ \§\ years of serving as a type of a guard tower, in
@ the 19th and 20th centuries, it often changed
S@’Va ; Y\O@.\B owners. Its new life began with placing a prison in
fory in Qlsztyn: ® it, the next hosts were firefighters and policemen, later
it quartered ordinary residents of Olsztyn. Currently, PTTK
(Polish Tourist and Sightseeing Society) offers accommaodation in its historic interiors.
In addition to the Old Town complex, there is also a Planetarium and an Astronomical
Observatory. The Planetarium was built in 1973 as a ,usable monument” of Nicolaus
Copernicus, on his 500th birthday. It has modern equipment enabling projection in digital
fulldome technology. In the Astronomical Observatory, opened in 1979 in the city water
tower, lunar crumbs are stored, the Polish flag taken to the moon by the Apollo 11 mission
and arich collection of meteorites. A unique monument is the Shortt-Synchronome clock,
the most accurate mechanical clock constructed in the world. The observatory, of course,
cannot lack information on heliocentric theory and the Copernican theory related to it.
Visitors of the capital of Warmia also have the opportunity to relax by the lakes in Olsztyn
and in city parks. By Lake Ukiel and Lake Dtugie, the two lakes that are the closest to
@ the city center, there are walking and cycling paths along which rest areas have been
arranged. There is also gastronomy by Lake Ukiel. Olsztyn i
has a unique chain of parks, starting on the northern *._ﬁ;s .
side of the city with the Jakubowo park, from &,
where you can take the so-called tynostrada
(@ walking and cycling trail along the tyna
River), the castle boroughs park and Central
park to get to the very center of the city,
wandering only among the greenery and
the sound of the waters of tyna. Tourists
arriving in Olsztyn in the summer have
the opportunity to enjoy the rich offer of
cultural events under the common name
of the Olsztyn Artistic Summer, having fun,
among others, at the National Castle Meetings %
,Let's Sing Poetry”, the International Olsztyn v ==
Folklore ,Warmia” Days or the Olsztyn Green Festival. ke Ukiel, hotO'»U\\l\
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e trail in Olsztyn runs along: Pienieznego,
1 Maja and al. Wojska Polskiego, futher
going along the national road DK51. In
Dobre Miasto, the trail runs along the
following streets: Olsztyriska, Grunwaldzka, Orta
Biatego and Wojska Polskiego. The walking
trail begins in Olsztyn at Jednosci Stowiariskiej é
Square, then along Nowowiejskiego and =
Wyzwolenia streets reaches tynostrada. %
Going through the Warmian villages, it reaches
Dobre Miast